
FIRST LUTHERAN CHURCH CONGREGATIONAL COUNCIL 
Meeting Agenda 

7:00 PM Tuesday, December 9, 2025 
Meeting in Upper Room and Via Zoom 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84168009362?pwd=ZUpEQWFwaXF2bmZlVFIvVnI3Nko0dz09 

 
                            Making disciples of Jesus Christ for the transformation of the world 
 
A.  Opening prayer – Pastor Erin 
 
B.  Approve Consent Agenda 
  1.  Meeting Agenda 

2.  Congregational Council Minutes – November 16, 2025 
3.  Parochial Report 
4.  Staff Reports 
5.  Committee Reports 
6.   Pastors’ Designated Housing Allowance for 2026 

 
C. Financial Update 
  1. November budget report – Treasurer 
  2. 2026 pledge update/budget proposal (Kari) 
 
D.  Discussion Agenda 

1. Annual meeting preview sessions Jan 11 & 18 (Jan council meeting on 13th) 
2. Raising right temple talk (Kari, Bev) 
3. Food insecurity efforts (Kari) 
4. Committee/ministry team updates from council liaisons 

a. Worship and Music (Dave, Bryce) 
b. Christian Education: Youth (Bev, Jenna); Adult Forum (Patrick, Rod) 
c. Social Ministry (Karen) 
d. Property (Rod)  
e. Stewardship (John) 
f. Fellowship (Judy) 
g. Nominating (Dave) 
h. Gifts and Memorials (Karen) - Chapel window dedication, thank you 
i. Community, Connections, and Collaboration (Kari) 

5. Council focus for 2026 
6. Constitution amendments 

 
E.   Open Comments 
 
F.   Sending Prayer 
 
G.   Adjournment 

FLC Vocational Words 
Accompany 
Welcoming 
Embracing 
Discipling 

Advocating 
Partnering 

FUTURE DATES TO REMEMBER 
 
December 20: Windows Dedication, Saturday Evening Service 
December 21: Art Glass Window symbol discussion – Adult Forum 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84168009362?pwd=ZUpEQWFwaXF2bmZlVFIvVnI3Nko0dz09


Executive Committee Minutes 

December 2, 2025.        7:00 pm 

Present: Kari Hoeft, John Boniauno, Pastor Erin, Pastor Andrew, Rod Johnson, Patrick Hayden-Roy 

Meeting called to order at 7:03 pm 

Opening Prayer 

Treasurer/Budget Committee – Kari update. Pledges have hit the target for 2026. This should make the 

budget projections work out. If there is a surplus this year this can be put back into other needs. 

 Review of current YTD: Still working on final numbers. Has been looking good. 

 Review of Finance Committee Budget recommendations 

  Non-pledged follow up: coming in, most of them are known issues that might explain the lack of a  

  pledge 

January Exec Committee meeting Monday, Jan 5th, 7:00 pm 

 Next Council Meeting Tuesday, Jan 13th, 7:00 pm 

 

 

Annual Meeting Date. Jan 25th,     

Ministry Fair: planning is in motion. 

Annual Meeting Preview meetings January 11 and 18 

Annual Meeting Agenda 

 

Committees 

Las Abejitas Lease renewal task force: Will begin meeting in January. Kari will convene. 

Property, Steve out for surgery, Janis hours and help. Will need to fill in--hire help or volunteers. 

  C.C.C. Informational update – Kari: Have discussed food pantry organizing.  Issue of community- 

  wide coordination. Need is anticipated to grow. There is shifting going on in the   

  community in terms of how to meet this need. After Christmas the plan is to move  

  forward. 

 Raising Right: Things are going forward. Still working on logistics and getting people in the habit 

  of using it. Special deal with Don and Millie's is being set up. 

 

 Review and update Pastoral Call Letter duties 

 Set a January Schedule: Set date of Tuesday, January 20th at 7:00 to complete the work, with 

  preliminary work to be completed ahead of time. 

 Educational and Youth training and adjustments 

Laura and Lillie   

Pastoral Housing adjustment (Consent Agreement): This is a yearly process, when desired by the 

Pastors. There are stipulations on how this is handled, but it doesn't have budgetary effects. Council does 

need to approve, so a resolution will be offered at the appropriate meeting. 

Constitution Review has met, and the Synod office has reviewed and suggested changes. Committee will 

be working on this in January. 



Pastor Erin reported that Greg Gabriel is ready to lay down his visitation duties, so they will be looking at 

others who can pick up the duties. 

Closing Prayer--Lord's Prayer 

Meeting adjourned at 7:55 pm. 

 



Parochial Report 

        Baptized Confirmed 

1. MEMBERSHIP as of November 1, 2025 1091  907  

Members received: 

  A. by baptism (15 years and under)                      

       B. by baptism (adult)         

  C. transfer from ELCA congregation   2  2     

  D. other Lutheran     1  1      

  E. affirmation of faith           

  F.  transfer from non-Lutheran congregation  2  2     

  G. other and statistical adjustment              

  

     Members removed: 

  A. death 2 2     

  B. transfer to ELCA congregation      

  C. transfer to other Lutheran congregation    

  D. transfer to non-Lutheran congregation   

  E. other and statistical adjustment      

   ____ ____ 

     MEMBERSHIP as of November 30, 2025                           1094                  910   

Average Attendance for November - in-person only 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 

407 417 398 289 344 Online 224 232 226 245 210 

  

Added:  

 Baptism:  

 Affirmation:  

 Transfer:  Travis Kahl (Lake Bible Church Portland, OR), Les & Nancy Eckels (American Lutheran Church 

Huron, SD) Darian Hakl (St. James Catholic Church), Alexandra Splittgerber (Zion Lutheran Church LCMS 

Kearney, NE) 

 Other:    
  

Removed: 

 Death: Darrell Bolles, Elaine Kruse 

 Transfer:   

 Dropped Due to Inactivity:  

 Other:   
  

Notes: Live Stream average for November 2025 is: no data available 

 



Congregational Council Meeting 

First Lutheran Church 

November 11, 2025  

MEMBERS PRESENT:  Kari Hoeft, Pastor Erin Heidelberger, Karen Statham, Bev White, Rod Johnson, 

Alissa Sandin, Judy Batterman, Jenna Troutman, Pastor Andrew Kitzing, Bryce Anderson, Dave Pfister, 

John Bonaiuto, Ann Bouma 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Patrick Hayden-Roy 

STAFF PRESENT: Bryan Hanson 

GUEST PRESENT: Barb Johnson Frank 

MEETING RECORDER: Ann Carlson 

A. OPENING DEVOTION/PRAYER/CHURCH LEADERSHIP INTRODUCTION:   

The meeting was called to order by Council President Rod Johnson at 7:31. It was determined 

that a quorum was established. Pastor Erin led the opening devotion and prayer.  

 

B. APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 

1. Meeting agenda 

2. Congregational Council Minutes – October 14, 2025 

3. Parochial Report 

4. Staff Reports 

5. Committee Reports 

6. Set date for annual meeting: January 25, 2026 

 

Since Barb Johnson Frank would like to speak during the Open Comments portion of the agenda, 

it was suggested that the order of the agenda be changed such that she will speak after the 

consent agenda is approved. 

 

It was moved by Kari and seconded by John to approve the consent agenda with the change in 

the order of the agenda items. The motion carried.  

 

C. OPEN COMMENTS: 

Barb spoke about faithful conversations. Typically, Sunday morning attendance is 10-14 people. 

How do we anchor ourselves in times of transitions? What resources are available from the 

ELCA? The goal is to anchor deeply in faith. Barb distributed the following documents: 

• A statement dated August 2, 2019, from the Rev. Elizabeth Eaton against Christian 

nationalism.  

• A social statement on Faith and Civic Life: Seeking the Well-being of All from the ELCA. 

• A letter from the Bishops of the ELCA to the Church dated October 8, 2025. 

 

D. ACTION AGENDA: 

1. Appointing Committee to review Las Abejitas Lease 



It was moved by Alissa and seconded by Ann to nominate Bev White, Steve Eicher and 

Donice Kaspar to join Kari, Bryan Hanson, and Pastor Erin on a committee to review and 

make recommendations related to the Las Abejitas Pre School lease, which is up for 

renewal in the spring. Discussion followed. 

There is a need to take a look at the direct utility expenses along with other 

maintenance and expenses along with the going rates for a facility like we are providing, 

while also taking into consideration the mission of our church to serve the community 

and help our neighbors. 

 

The motion carried. 

 

E. FINANCIAL UPDATE: 

1. October budget report – Treasurer 

YTD receipts through October 31, 2025, were $3,926 under budget; YTD disbursements 

through October 31, 2025, were $13,973 under budget; YTD surplus through October 

31, 2025, was $10,047. Bryan estimates that there will be a small surplus at the end of 

the year. 

 

2. 2026 pledge update/budget proposal (Kari, Bryan) 

Kari and Bryan provided an update on the 2026 pledge status. They also discussed the 

PPP/Contingency Fund, Mortgage Transition Fund, compensation budget, utility budget, 

and mortgage budget. We will have a different interest rate on our mortgage in April 

2026. A mortgage prepayment may be considered at that time. 

 

F. DISCUSSION AGENDA: 

1. Standing rules of the congregational council (October 13, 2009) 

The Standing Rules were included in the council packets. Section 1.6 on the Open 

Comment Period was highlighted. 

 

2. RaiseRight temple talk (Kari, Bev) 

Kari and Bev discussed RaiseRight, which is a gift card fundraiser. They are planning to 

sell gift cards to HyVee, Super Saver, Walmart, Sams, and Scheels. Kari will give a temple 

talk at a Sunday service. 

 

3. Ministry fair at annual meeting 

The ministry fair will provide an opportunity for committees to explain what they do. 

Each committee will have a separate table. 

 

4. Food insecurity efforts 

An Immanuel grant is available to assist with food insecurity. The application is due 

January 1. The group discussed the need in our neighborhood. We feed thirty families at 

school weekly. Can FoodNet come to our facility? If we apply for the grant, we will need 

to put an item in our budget.  

5. Committee/ministry team updates from council liaisons 



a. Worship and Music (Dave, Bryce) 

There is a need for more individuals to sign up to assist with worship. Rod 

asked that Council members wear their name tags to church.  

 

b. Christian Education: Youth (Bev, Jenna); Adult Forum (Patrick, Rod) 

Youth – the group will meet tomorrow. 

Adult Forum – the next meeting is Thursday morning. 

 

c. Social Ministry (Karen) 

The group will not meet again until January. 

  

d. Property (Rod) 

The HVAC maintenance agreement is under negotiation. 

The roof repairs have not yet been completed. 

 

e. Stewardship (John) 

Council members received a list of people who pledged. They are directed to 

make a quick call to those members to thank them for their pledge. 

 

f. Fellowship (Judy) 

Sunday, November 16, is the Ordination Anniversary Celebration.  

Thursday, November 27, is Thanksgiving dinner. Individuals can sign up online. 

Funds raised from the Advent meals in December will go to the Backpack 

Program. 

Fellowship will also host a Christmas dinner. 

 

g. Nominating (Dave) 

The nominating committee still needs individuals to run for elected positions. 

 

h. Gifts and Memorials (Karen) 

The Gifts and Memorials committee will meet after the first of the year. A gift 

has been received from Pastor Heier’s Estate. 

 

i. CCC (Community, Connections and Collaboration (Kari) 

Gifts of Hope is December 7. 

 

6. Council focus for 2026 

This item will be held until the orientation for the next council. 

 

G. SENDING PRAYER: 

Pastor Erin led the closing prayer. 

 

H. ADJOURNMENT: 

The meeting was adjourned. 



 

 

 

 

 



 
MEETING DATE:  December 9, 2025 
 
SUBJECT:   Pastors’ Designated Housing Allowance 
 
PROPOSED ACTION: The designated housing allowance for Pastor Erin Heidelberger 

will be set for the 2026 calendar year at $32,000 and for Pastor 
Andrew Kitzing for the 2026 calendar year at $32,000. These 
amounts are to remain in place until or unless there is Council 
action to change them. 

 
BACKGROUND: According to the Internal Revenue Service regulations, clergy are 

permitted to exclude from their taxable income the costs of 
maintaining a residence. This housing allowance is not included as 
taxable income on pastors’ W-2 forms (while not subject to 
federal income tax, the housing allowance is subject to self-
employment tax). 

 
A pastor’s housing allowance must be established or designated 
by the church or denominational authority. The preferred way to 
do this is for the church council/board to adopt a housing 
allowance resolution prior to each calendar year (or prior to the 
arrival of a new pastor) and record the resolution in the minutes 
of the meeting. 

 
SPONSORS: Pastor Erin Heidelberger, Pastor Andrew Kitzing 
 
 



Lead Pastor Erin Heidelberger Council Report                   December 9 , 2025  Council Meeting                                   

 

December is always full of Advent and Christmas planning with additional worship services and events, 
so that continues to be a focus for me at this time of the year. A few more highlights of things happening 
and coming up:  
 
Nominating Committee: The nominating committee has continued their work inviting people to be 
candidates for elected leadership. Currently we have nine nominees for council (we aim for ten nominees 
if possible), both of the nominees needed for endowment board, all six needed for nominating committee, 
and six out of ten needed for synod assembly. Many thanks to this team for their hard work over the past 
months and for the continued work of gathering bios and photos from nominees for the annual report. 
Thanks to chair Erin Niebuhr, Courtney Anderson, Linda Bogenreif, Les Carlson, Bryan Hanson, and 
Dave Pfister for serving on the nominating team this year! 
 
Staffing: Pastor Greg Gabriel will wrap up his interim visitation ministry work with us at the end of 
December, so we will be looking at options for bringing on a new visitation minister or, if necessary and 
if possible, multiple visitation ministers who can fill the need for this work at First Lutheran.  
 
Adult Confirmation: Reminder that I will teach First Lutheran 201: Adult Confirmation class on Sunday 
mornings in February: Feb. 1, 8, 15, and 22. This will be geared to new members and potential members 
who are coming to us from another denomination/faith tradition or who may not have a church 
background, as well as long-time members who may want a Lutheran theology refresher. 
 
This brings me back to a need that I have been thinking about for some time, the need for First Lutheran 
to develop deeper Christian formation for members of all ages—not only for our youth—that fits with 
our vocation of discipling.  As we have welcomed new members over the past few years, it has become 
clear to me that there’s a need for us to provide a longer-term, deeper discipling/spiritual formation 
experience, a basic but comprehensive introduction to the foundations of Christian faith. 
 
Created Concert: We have an opportunity to help sponsor the UNL Lutheran Center’s Created Concert 
this winter. The concert will be held on Friday, March 27, and is an annual event to share deep faith that 
is LGBTQIA+ affirming. This year’s concert will feature Semler, an alt-Christian singer/songwriter. 
Sponsoring, promoting, and attending the concert will give us the chance to connect with the ministry of 
the Lutheran Center and build on our ministry of inclusion and welcome. 
 
Sabbatical and Journeys of Paul Greece trip planning: My original start date for sabbatical was July 1, 
but I’d like to move that back a week to start June 24 (last day Sept. 26) to better accommodate joining the 
Journeys of Paul trip to Greece October 4-14 (so far, five First Lutheran members have registered for that 
trip). This would give me a week plus two Sundays in between the end of sabbatical and the start of the 
Greece trip. More planning will begin soon for the congregational pieces of the sabbatical. 
 
Grace + Peace,  

 



Associate Pastor’s Report 
 

Nov. 12 – funeral, Peggy 

12 – Xn Ed committee 

16 – Ordination Anniversary Celebration 

20 – NLOM Board meeting 

21 – Parent’s Night Out 

Dec. 3 – Advent began 

6 – funeral, Elaine 

6 – baptism, Macaluso (friend of mine from college) 

7 – Gifts of Hope 

 

14 – Talent Show 

21 – Longest Night Service 

24 – Xmas Eve 

Jan 2 – First Friday Jazz youth serving 

6 – Lincoln Area Epiphany Service at Grace 

 

 

There are a couple things coming up that I want to be sure to draw your attention to. The first is 

the congregational talent show happening after the second service on December 14. We’ll use the 

proceeds from the freewill chili lunch for the summer youth trip to Pittsburgh. Even if you can do 

nothing more than walk and chew gum at the same time, come show your talent off! Talk to Lillie 

for more info. 

 

The second is the Lincoln Area Epiphany service at Grace. This is a service that came out of our 

partnership with area churches for the Easter Vigil service. We will gather for an evening worship 

service at Grace, eat soup together, and celebrate the Epiphany. The service will be held in their 

chapel. 

 

I can’t wait to see everyone on Xmas eve! Each service will offer a different flavor of celebration of 

Xmas. Come to one or more! And if you have young people in your house or neighborhood, 

consider the children’s service at 11AM on Xmas eve. We’ve got a new, fun, child friendly service 

planned. 

 

Merry Xmas, 

 

Pr. Andrew 



Director of Worship and Music 

November, 2025.  

Sunday Musicians 

November 2 both  Jazz Team (Bryce Anderson, Tony Anderson, Kristi Fisher, Matt Reckmeyer Bob Schoettger,                  

                                                         Jay Sears, Martha Tanner, Bennett Bacon, Kyle Schmitter (10:45) 
                    10:45 Faith Trek 

November 9   8:15  No Worship (Good Life Halfsy Marathon) 

                       10:45 Adult Choir, Brian Niebuhr, Erin Pfister, Bonita Thomsen 

     String Ensemble (Konnor Garrett, Mai Jacobo, Brian Niebuhr, Will Niebuhr, Xander Niebuhr, 

                                  Kayla Peters, Jenna Troutman, Elsa Wemhoff, Bennett Bacon) 

November 16   both Spirit Ringers 

                         8:15 Adult Choir, Gordon Youngquist 

                         10:45 Dawn Brock 

November 23   Christ the King:  

A Festival of Festivals – Celebrating the Reign of Christ in the Seasons of the Church 

                   8:15  Adult Choir 

                   10:45 Youth Orff Ensemble, Kyle Schmitter, Jay Sears 

November 30  Advent I 

                   8:15 Adult Choir 

       10:45 Eliana Frank-Genis, Amy Thorpe 

Saturday Musicians 

November  1, 15, & 22 – Christine Carman, November 8- Kristina Hanson, 

November 29 Canceled due to weather 

Overview 

Boyd and I spent most of the month gearing up Advent season as well as for current music groups.  It was a 

fruitful and busy month reflecting how we are blessed with many First Lutheran musicians.   

All Saints Day (November 2) People shared appreciation to have a chance to remember and to honor their 

loved ones in heaven, especially with lighting candles.   

November 9 (Marathon Day) Having one (10:45) worship allowed people to worship with people they don’t 

often see.  The String Ensemble led the whole worship service and gave us chance to worship in a different 

style. 

Christ the King: A Festival of Festivals – Celebrating the Rein of Christ in the Season of the Church 



Many people shared their appreciation for listening to various people reading Scripture from each season of the 

Church Year and having the visual (banners and paraments) enhancement to celebrate the end of church year. 

On the other hand, there were some voices about not liking ‘casual’ translation/interpretation of Bible. 

Hanging of Greens (November 23, Noon) Worship & Music Committee led the decoration with wonderful 

help from various people and everything was done in a very short time.  We particularly appreciated and excited 

to have help from New Members who just joined that day! 

Advent I (November 30). Although it was cold and road was icy, the first Advent Sunday was held  with a 

good number of worshippers.    

Respectfully submitted, 

                  Soli deo gloria! 

                     Masako Bacon 



Lillie Rademacher 

Youth Ministry Coordinator 

November & December 2025 Council Report 

  

 November was busy, and the rest of December will be too! In November, we did a 
cool advent wreath project with the kids and restocked four Little Free Pantries! We went to 
Neveria La Monarca afterwards for some ice cream, and I think the kids had a lot of fun. 
We’re planning to do another restock in January, possibly the 19th since LPS has the day off. 

 The cleanup on November 9th (Halfsy Day) also went well. We were able to rake up 
all the pine needles in half an hour, despite the cold! Since this one went well and we had 
good turnout, I hope we can plan more events like this. 

 We also hosted Parent’s Night Out. We had some kiddos that were sick last minute, 
but we had three come, plus our ! Everyone had fun: we played games, watched Toy Story, 
and had pizza.  

 In December, students will do a scavenger hunt for Gifts of Hope to learn more 
about our vendors. For the Talent Show, we have some wonderful acts lined up, I think it’ll 
be full of fun and holiday spirit. This is also a fundraiser for camp and the Pittsburgh trip, so 
I’ll have the students attending the trip help serve.  

 Once the Talent Show is over, I’ll shift my focus to working on First Friday Jazz and 
Annual Meeting at the end of January. 

 I’m excited about our ministry in the coming month and seeing our kids be involved. 



December 2025 Council Report 
FaithTrek 

December- Super busy month!  This month I: 
1.​I Purchased little lanterns and crepe paper to make the 

activity for the intergenerational event this month. 
2.​Reworked curriculum, made copies, gathered all required 

materials needed for each age group, distributed curriculum 
to classrooms, picked up curriculum after FaithTrek, and 
replaced unused items back to the materials closet. 

3.​Emailed teachers each week with curriculum and 
suggestions for success with the lesson. 

4.​Wrote the Weekly Blasts to keep parents informed. 
5.​Helped organize and assist in the intergenerational clean up 

event after the Goodlife Halfsy. 
6.​Helped organize Parent’s Night Out with Lillie and Bev 

White.  I brought Christmas Bingo, and played in the Lego 
room for the with the children attending. 

7.​Ordered a cart needed for an idea learned at the Font and 
Faith symposium, and will prepare information about this. 

8.​Made cue cards and gathered props, contacted parents to 
get permission for their child to be in a Gifts of Hope 
“commercial”, and facilitated Kathleen with the filming of the 
commercial. 

9.​Attended staff meetings and required office hours on 
Tuesdays. 

10.​ Made a short film about the Prayground during advent 
with Lillie 

11.​ Organized and the children down the aisles for both 
services Nov. 23rd. 

12.​ Led the intergenerational event on Nov. 23rd 



13.​ Attended Education committee meeting 
14.​ Gave the children’s sermon and helped the cherubs 

collect the noisy offering, both services. 
 

 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Laura Graulty 
. 
 
 
 



qu

COMMUNICATIONS MINISTRY
November 2025

by Kathleen Simley, Communications Director

 My Weekly Tasks

“First Glance” Bulletin
Insert
“First Things First” E-
Newsletter
FaithTrek E-Newsletter
Sunday Worship
Livestream
TV Slides
Facebook, Instagram,
Realm and News posts
(daily)

My Monthly Tasks

Digital Sign Updates
Website Updates 
First Friday Jazz

EVENT PROMOTION

Gifts of Hope Market - December 6 & 7

To promote the event and raise community awareness, the

website was updated, an article was published in the Journal

Star Neighborhood Extra and social media posts were created,

including a boosted Facebook post that reached 3,916 people as

of this date.

Promotional materials and information was shared with ELCA

cluster churches and flyers were distributed at the First Friday

Jazz concert on December 5.

A promotional video featuring the FaithTrek kids highlighting

each Gifts of Hope partner was produced and shared on social

media. (Thanks goes to Sunni Richardson for writing the

script!)

Custom social media graphics and text were supplied to each of

the 12 GOH partners to help them promote the event to their

followers.

An interactive online catalog for the Gifts of Hope Market

(https://bit.ly/2025-GOH-Catalog) was designed and launched,

with an e-commerce store set up for online purchases on

December 6–7.

The RaiseRight fundraiser for Gifts of Hope partners was

promoted weekly.

Out of the Blue Advent Season

Promotion was carried out for the “Out of the Blue” Advent

series, which included mid-week Holden Evening Prayer

services.

A weekly devotional was prepared and is ready to email to

members every Sunday throughout the Advent season.

The livestream team was scheduled for the weekly Holden

Evening Prayer services every Wednesday at 6:30 PM.

https://bit.ly/2025-GOH-Catalog


COMMUNICATIONS MINISTRY
November 2025

by Kathleen Simley, Communications Director

EVENT PROMOTION (CONT)

Worship at First Lutheran

A postcard was designed with December worship times (weekend services, Advent, Longest Night,

Christmas Eve, and Christmas Day) for distribution to Gifts of Hope customers.

A flyer was designed with December worship times for distribution at the December 5 First Friday Jazz

concert.

Other Promotion

Materials were prepared for the New Member welcome bag.

Promotional tools were developed for a variety of special events, including the Talent Show, Thanksgiving

and Christmas Dinners, Advent Soup Meals, Stewardship Campaign, Parents Night Out, Town Hall &

Potluck, Intergenerational Lantern Project and First Friday Jazz.

DIGITAL ENGAGEMENT
First Things First email open rates averaged 69% with 600 people on the mailing list.

Facebook: 4,023 viewers, 512 interactions, 1.6K visits, 6 new followers, total 1,113 followers.

Instagram: 1,708 views, reaching 177 accounts, 29 interactions, 14 visits, 2 new followers, total 218

followers.

Website: 6,107 page views, 4,813 users.

PLANS FOR DECEMBER
Support Gifts of Hope sales and partner engagement with ongoing digital promotion and post-market

updates.

Promote Advent and Christmas Eve/Day services, including Longest Night worship, across all digital

channels and a mailed postcard to all members and a door hanger distributed in our area neighborhood.

Stream Advent Holden Prayer Worship on Wednesdays and Christmas Eve worship at 3:30 PM.

Set up the annual photo booth at the Christmas Eve worship services.

Write my 2025 annual report.

Prepare interviews and articles for the First Stories newsletter slated to be published in January 2026.

Research digital & print options for creating a new Member Directory.

TAKE VACATION DECEMBER 25-JANUARY 2!



 

First Lutheran Church 
Property Committee Minutes  

November 26, 2025 
 
Attending: Chair Norman Kempf, Rod Johnson, Les Carlson, Steve Doolittle, Richard 
Draper, Steve Lenzen 
 

Meeting time: 7:00 PM   
 
Minute taker: Les 
 
Minutes of the October PC meeting were approved. 

 
Agenda: 

 
1. According to Rod there is nothing new regarding the status of roller skating in 

FLC other than the trial period is over and so far, there has been no 
correspondence regarding continuing this activity at FLC. 
 

2. Steve L reported that another ceiling tile had been dislodged and that he has 
informed Kayla about potential water damage that can happen if a sprinkler is 
broken when ceiling tiles are disrupted. 

 
3. Steve L provided information about the recent water leak that occurred in an 

upstairs restroom. Five damaged ceiling tiles were replaced. Steve L and 
Brandon provided shopvacs, dehumidifier(s), and fans and coordinated water 
collection and removal from several floors. The PC made a special resolution 
of thanks to Brandon, Steve L, and others such as Boyd who first noticed the 
leak from a water line to a toilette and shut off the toilette’s water supply.  

 
4. Steve L said additional lighting is needed for several very dark parking lot 

areas. Steve L will obtain a bid for completing this work. 
 
5. Norman reminded that there is no PC meeting in December.  

 
Prayer: January Steve Doolittle 
 
Minute taker:   Les  
 

 
 



The purpose of the First Lutheran Church Endowment Board is to grow the portfolio such that the annual distributions do not 

expend any of the principal of the fund and the portfolio meets a socially responsible investment strategy. It shall be the policy of 

the Board to distribute up to 6% of the preceding three-year average balance, while never expending the donated principal of 

the fund. The Board determined that the current method of distributions coming from ELCA Ministry Growth Fund are not in 

conflict with the language of the First Lutheran Church By-Laws. 

First Lutheran Church Endowment Board Agenda 

Meeting Date – Wednesday, August 6, 2025, at 7:00 pm First Lutheran Church 

Members attending: Ann Carlson, Steve Doolittle, Marsha McKinsey, Karen Peppmuller, 
Madalyn Popken 
Also in attendance:  Pastor Erin Heidelberg 
  
Opening Devotion – Marsha McKinsey 

No opening prayer 

A. Review of Board Members: 

Ann Carlson – 2nd Term, 3rd Year 

Karen Peppmuller – 2nd Term, 2nd Year 

Steve Doolittle – 2nd Term, 1st Year 

Madalyn Popken – 1st Term, 2nd Year 

Marsha McKinsey – 1st Term, 1st Year 

 

Terms were noted. 

 

B. Approve Agenda 

 

Motion to approve by Karen, second by Steve.  All in favor.  Motion approved. 

 

C. Approve Minutes of Board Meeting on May 21, 2025 

 

Motion to approve by Steve, second by Marsha.  All in favor.  Motion approved. 

 

D. Financial Report – Karen Peppmuller, Treasurer  

 

Karen reviewed the 6/30/25 Financial Report.  The total market value of the Endowment Fund as of this 

date was $774,118.38.  The total portfolio is $836,344.29.  Ann thanked Karen for her report. 

 

E. ELCA Ministry Growth Fund Investor Call 

1. Discuss July 25 call. 

 

Ann listened to the call and distributed written information regarding the call to the board members.  

The Ministry Growth fund second quarter 2025 was up 8%.  The benchmark was 7.1%.  The next investor 

call is October 24, 2025. 

 



 

 

F. Scholarships 

1. School plans for Elaina Johnson and Ethan Cotter. 

2. Timing for disbursement of funds for other scholarship recipients. 

 

The Board has not heard from Elaina Johnson and Ethan Cotter has elected not to go to grad school.  

Karen has the remaining scholarship checks for $7,500 written and ready to be disbursed as follows:   

 Nicholas Bushard  UNL     $1,000.00 

 Zachary Bushard  St. Olaf     $1,000.00 

 Aiden Cotter   Colorado State    $1,000.00 

 Grace Monson   Michigan College of Optometry  $1,000.00 

 Aden Niebuhr   University of Iowa   $1,000.00 

 Will Niebuhr   UNL     $1,000.00 

 Xander Niebuhr   UNO     $1,000.00 

 Caden Peppmuller  UNO     $   500.00   

          $7,500.00 

G. Requests for Funds 

1. Social Ministry Fund Request 

2. Justice in Action Request 

After discussion, a motion was made by Steve and seconded by Marsha to give $2,000.00 to Mosaic, 

$2,000.00 to Dana Village and $2,000.00 to Justice in Action.  All in favor.  Motion approved. 

H. Endowment Fund Contribution Education (i.e., beneficiary on retirement accounts) 

 

Karen emailed Patrick Hayden-Roy about Adult Forum. He can fit into the schedule if we can submit 

some possible ideas. Karen will contact Sarah Callahan regarding any ideas she may have. 

 

I. Agenda Placeholder – First Lutheran Constitution Appendix B Updates. This was voted on at the 

Special Meeting of the Congregation in October. It is not yet on our website. 

 

Website has been updated. 

 

J. Internal Review Placeholder for 2025 financial review 

 

Karen will take care of in January or February of 2026 with Bryan Hanson.  

 

K. Agenda Placeholder – Mailbox Review – Karen 

Nothing in mailbox. 
 

L. 2025 Tentative Meeting Schedule 



1. November 12 – Review end of year fundraising requests and determine what can 

and should be distributed beyond what was given out for scholarships, regular 

meeting. 

Dates were discussed. 

M. Other 

No other business. 

N. Closing Prayer 

Pastor Erin gave closing prayer. 

 

 

US Bank Contacts – Johnny Chacon johnny.chacon@usbank.com and Burgundy Hajek 

burgundy.hajek@usbank.com 

ELCA Ministry Growth Fund Contact – Gregory Kramer gregory.kramer@elca.org. The planned 

giving contact (Omaha) is Sarah Callahan scallahan@lutherangiving.org.  

 

mailto:johnny.chacon@usbank.com
mailto:burgundy.hajek@usbank.com
mailto:gregory.kramer@elca.org
mailto:scallahan@lutherangiving.org


Fellowship Committee Meeting Minutes

November 11, 2025

Attending:  Ann Allen, Teresa Brohimer, Linda Bogenreif, Carlene Falos, Karen Moser, Carol Tesar, 
Gordon Wolfe, and chaired by Judy Batterman.

Devotions were given by Ann Allen.

Past events:  
Halloween Hoot - Sunday, October 9th, from noon until 2 pm.  There were 25 guests for lunch, with 11 
children participating in games, crafts, and pumpkin decorating.  Costumes were worn by Committee 
members and children.

Potluck Town Hall - Sunday, November 9th.  There was an abundance of food.  The discussion offered 
that future potluck meal invitations state attendees bring a dish to serve, and an item or food to be given 
to the Lutheran Food Pantry.

Upcoming Events:
Coffee Service Between Services - November 16th.  Gordon can make coffee.

Celebration of Ordinations - also November 16th at 9:30 am.  Carlene has ordered a 96 piece sheet 
cake.  Gordon has purchased plates, utensils, and napkins.  Gordon will coordinate with Boyd on the  
need for sound system and microphone.  Event will honor ministry milestones for Pastor Erin, Pastor 
Andrew, Deacon Sunni Richardson, Pastor Howard Rasmussen, and posthumously, Pastor Harlen Heier. 
Pastor Marsha Anderson will be recognized for her service as visitation minister, with Pastor Greg Gabriel 
introduced as the new visitation minister.

Thanksgiving Noon Meal - to date there are 13 people registered.  Carlene has a purchased two 
turkeys. Teresa will provide a ham.  Judy will provide placemats.  Judy will work with Kathleen on 
promotion and online registration opportunities. Judy is putting out a sign up sheet in the entryway. 
Committee members able to host are Judy, Teresa, and Karen.  Carlene will be able to help set up.

Advent Meals - Committee is serving a noon meal for December 3rd,10th, and the 17th.  We will provide 
the evening meal for only the 3rd and 17th.  The evening meal on the 10th will be chili made and served 
by the youth.  Judy will contact Pastor to plan around any Bible study or discussion to be held before/
during/after the meal.  Carlene will be available to help with the noon meals.  Gordon will help with 
evening meals.  Social Ministry is asking that the free will offering be directed to the BackPack Program.

Christmas Dinner - to be discussed at next meeting.

Our next meeting will be Tuesday, December 9th at 5:30 pm.  Gordon will give devotions.

Submitted by Linda Bogenreif for Linda Carlson, Secretary



Community Connections and Collaborations 
Meeting Minutes 
Nov. 23rd 2005 
ZOOM meeting 
 
Present:  Gene and Sherri Cotter, Terry Kruse, Sunni Richardson, Kari Hoeft, Lisa Culbertson, 
Barb Johnson Frank, Linda Bogenreif 
 
We reviewed our plans for the Gifts of Hope Market, Dec. 7th. 
 
Brunch: 
Gene and Sherri are making sausage burritos.  It will be a free will donation benefiting the Food 
Bank of Lincoln.  They have some volunteers lined up and are waiting to hear back from more. 
They will connect with Janis about any needs for the activity space.  
 
Display: 
Kari and Lisa did a wonderful job of putting up the display! There are fliers out in the welcome 
space and on the display table. 
 
Table Partner and Greeter Volunteers: 
Sunni and Terry are making good progress but still have spots to fill.  Once the list is more 
finalized it will be sent out to the CCC team. They will also send emails to the volunteers with 
specific information,  times etc… early next week.  
If anyone has a volunteer to recommend, contact Sunni or Terry.   
 
Cashiers: 
Linda Bogenreif has talked to those involved in this important part of the event and they are on 
track.  
 
Online catalog:  Per KAthleen, the online catalog will premier Wednesday, Dec. 3rd and in the 
FTF newsletter and our website and on social media. 
 
Promotion:  

○​ An insert promoting the market will be in the bulletin on November 23 and 
November 30. 

○​ Another insert, slightly different, will be in the bulletin on the day of the market 
(December 7). 

○​ The flyer that has been created is ready to send electronically to Pastor Kim 
(Cluster leader) at St. Andrew's Lutheran to share with other area ELCA 
pastors. 

○​ Team members are encouraged to either print the flyer (I will send in a 
separate email to you) or take copies from the display table and share 



with friends, family and other places of interest (Tabitha, The Landing, 
Grand Lodge, etc). 

○​ The flyer will also be placed on the tables at the First Friday Jazz concert on 
December 5. 

○​ A Facebook Ad will be also be posted by December 1 and boosted throughout 
Lincoln and the surrounding area. 

○​ A story will be sent to the Journal Star for inclusion in the Neighborhood Extra 
on December 6. 

○​ Promotion will also be in the First Glance, First Things First e-newsletter, on 
our Facebook/Instagram pages and our website, beginning the week of 
November 24, and will include the promotional video made by the FaithTrek 
kids (Thank you to Sunni for writing the script!). 

 
Middle School/ High School involvement: 
Sunni has worked on this with Laura Graulty and Lillie Rademacher . They have a good 
plan in place to involve the youth.   
 
SET UP and CLEAN UP: 
Set up is scheduled at 1 pm on Friday, Dec. 5th.  This will include arranging the 
tables as needed, setting up the chairs for the tables, putting tablecloths on tables and 
assisting any agency partners with set up.  Some may come that afternoon and some 
may set up Sunday morning. 
Terry met with Mandy.  Janis was not able attend the meeting unexpectedly. Mandy has 
worked with GOH for 2 years and has a good idea of how it works and good ideas for 
he floor plan. Terry emailed Janis and he plans to be at the church on Friday, the 5th but 
not on Sunday, the 7th.  He included Steve Lenzen on our email exchange and Steve 
will help on Sunday with tables.  
Anyone who is able to help with set up and/or tear down is appreciated.  
Tear down will be about 1 pm or so on Sunday.   
All last shift table partners will be asked to help their agency pack up and load their car 
as needed.  
 
An additional table will be set up for Pastor Marsha’s donated items.  BJF in charge of 
this.  
 
Followup after the Market: 
We discussed sending thank you’s to all of the volunteers.  We decided to send email 
thank yous to the volunteers and postcard thank yous to the agencies. Each of us send 
our own email thank you to whomever we recruited. Kathleen has postcards for us to 
use as well. Who will send to agency partners??? 



 
 
 
Other topics for CCC: 
Food pantry grants- Report from Kari. Kari is able to apply for an Immanuel 
Foundation Grant quarterly. We discussed various ideas and agreed further research 
was needed to finalize some ideas and move forward with application for a grant. An 
important aspect would be to ask congregation members who would be willing to work 
on this project and include them in planning and implementation. Tabled for further 
discussion at this time. 
 
Winter clothing drive- Cindy Lilleoien and Sherri Cotter will continue to work on this 
after the holidays.  
 
Our next meeting is scheduled for Jan. 11th at 1 pm.  Option to do it in person or 
zoom to be decided.  
 
 
 
 


	Council Agenda December  2025
	FLC Executive Committee Minutes-12_3_2025
	November 2025 Parochial Report
	Congregational Council Notes November 11 2025
	Clergy Housing Resolution Dec 2025
	Lead Pastor Report December 2025 Council Mtng
	Associate Pastor Report 2025-12
	Music Director Council Report November 2025
	YMC Nov 2025 Council Report
	Faith Trek Coordinator Nov 2025 council  (1)
	Communications Director Council Report - November  2025
	Property Committee minutes 11 25  2025
	Endowment Board Minutes 8-6-2025 (2)
	Fellowship Committee Minutes Nov 2025
	Community Connections and Collaborations

